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From: Todd R. Campbell [mailto:Todd.Campbell@cleanenergyfuels.com] 
Sent: Friday, June 12, 2015 4:10 PM
To: Wade, Samuel@ARB; Vergara, Floyd@ARB; Prabhu, Anil@ARB; Singh, Manisha@ARB; Corey, 
Richard@ARB
Cc: Harrison Clay; Brandon Price; Ryan Kenny; Tim Carmichael; Philip Sheehy; Jeff Rosenfeld
(jeffrey.rosenfeld@icfi.com); Patrick Couch (patrick.couch@gladstein.org)
Subject: Memo addressing CE's concerns and need for clarification on the 15 Day Proposed Regulation 
Order of the LCFS

Dear Sam and ARB LCFS Team,

First, on behalf of Clean Energy’s LCFS Team, we would like to collectively thank you for your
willingness to meet and discuss with us our concerns over the LCFS’ 15 Day Proposed Regulation
Order on Tuesday, June 9.  Your immediate attention to our industry’s concerns is very much
valued.

Second, based on your recommendation during our meeting earlier this week, we are submitting
the attached memo that outlines our primary concerns and need for further confirmation or
clarification of the proposed regulation order’s intent. 

Finally, we would like to express our gratitude in advance for your thoughtful and timely response
to the attached memo as it will provide our industry with a clear understanding of the ARB staff’s
regulatory intent on pathways and credit generation under the proposed rule.  Thank you!

Sincerely,

Todd R. Campbell

Vice President of Public Policy & Regulatory Affairs

office 949.437.1400 | fax 562-395-1666
email tcampbell@cleanenergyfuels.com




 


To: Sam Wade & Staff, Air Resources Board 


From: Todd Campbell & Harrison Clay, Clean Energy Fuels Corp. 


Re: LCFS Re-Adoption Language; 15 Day Comment  


Date: June 12, 2015 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


We would like to thank you all for taking the time to meet with us on June 9th to address our concerns 
with the latest iteration of the LCFS Re-Adoption rule currently up for comment. The purpose of this 
memo is to memorialize the concerns and clarifications that were discussed in the meeting and to help 
facilitate a smooth transition to the LCFS Re-Adoption starting in 2016. Clean Energy is committed to 
working with the ARB to develop and implement suitable solutions to ensure the ongoing success of the 
LCFS program. 


Topics of Discussion:   


1. § 95488(a): Current and Pending LCFS Pathways Grandfathered into the Re-Adoption.  Our 
understanding is that the Re-Adoption allows for all fuel pathways that were in effect on 
12/31/2015 to remain valid until ARB re-certifies the carbon intensities for CNG and LNG fuels 
with CA-GREET2.0.  This re-certification could occur as late as Q4 2016. Upon re-certification, 
(no later than 12/31/2016), all “grandfathered” pathways will be deactivated and replaced by 
the re-certified carbon intensity pathway. We were concerned that the language for the 
deactivation schedule suggests that “grandfathering” may be limited to pathways certified by 
12/31/2015 and applied for before 12/1/2014.  We have a number of pathways applied for after 
12/1/2014 that we were concerned would lose their ability to generate and sell credits after 
1/1/2016.  Therefore we were greatly relieved that the ARB confirmed in our meeting that every 
pathway in effect as of 12/31/2015 will be valid and remain in effect through the start of the Re-
Adoption until re-certification (no later than 12/31/2016).   
 
CE currently has three pathways (CERF Shelby, Westside, and EIF Kansas City) that are up for 
public comment and should be certified in the next month. CE also has two outstanding 
applications submitted after 12/1/2014 (MDU and BFI/Complexe Enviro). Both MDU and 
BFI/Complexe Enviro were submitted after 12/1/2014 and need to be certified in order to be 
grandfathered into the Re-Adoption.  The ARB assured us during the meeting that all current 
pending applications will be approved and certified by 12/31/2015.  It is our understanding that 
the ARB is going to spend the remainder of 2015 certifying all pending pathways under the old 
LCFS rule and then re-certify all those same pathways during 2016. This means that both MDU 
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and BFI will be certified by 12/31/2015 and will be able to generate and monetize LCFS credits 
through 2016 while their recertification applications are pending. 
 
BFI/Complex Enviro first started production around September 2014 - which means that the 
facility will not have the full two years of operational data to support a fully certified pathway 
until September 2016.  However, it is our understanding that since BFI will be grandfathered 
under the old LCFS program, CE will be able to generate and monetize credits pursuant to the 
old LCFS regulation during 2016.  Once two years of operating data is received in 2016, CE will 
notify the ARB to re-certify the BFI/Complexe Enviro pathway which will occur before the end of 
2016. 
 
With respect to Clean Energy’s CNG and LNG sales from fossil fuel natural gas, it is our 
understanding that the following process will apply: 


• Clean Energy’s approximately 150 CNG stations will be grouped and file a Tier 1 
application. 


• Pending approval of the CNG stations pathway, Clean Energy will continue to be 
able to generate and sell credits under the existing LCFS CNG default pathway 
through 2016. 


• Clean Energy LNG pathways will be filed individually by facility in a Tier 1 
application. 


• Clean Energy will be able to generate and sell LNG credits under the existing LNG 
pathways for those facilities during 2016 while the Tier 1 applications are 
pending. 
 


2. § 95488(d)(1-2): Monetizing Credits Generated under Temporary or Provisional Fuel Pathway 
Codes. 


Under the current LCFS rule, facilities with pending application approvals are able to 
generate and monetize LCFS credits under the various ARB approved “default” pathways (CE 
specifically utilizes CNG006 and LNG021). Furthermore, several of these facilities are 
classified as provisional since they have been in operation for less than the ARB mandate of 
two (2) years.  Nonetheless, the current regulation allows such provisional facilities to 
monetize credits under a default or provisional pathway regardless of the length of time in 
operation.  


As discussed, the proposed LCFS Re-Adoption appears to eliminate the ability to monetize 
credits generated under any temporary or provisional pathways until a facility receives a 
certified CI and pathway. These prohibitions on monetization of provisional and temporary 
pathway credits carry unintentional but potentially fatal consequences to the biomethane 
production market.  Biomethane producers rely on the revenue generated from the 
monetization of both LCFS credits and RINs to offset the higher costs of producing 
renewable natural gas.  Disallowing credit sales for any period, let alone a full two years, is 







enough to discourage the development of these biomethane production facilities which is 
detrimental to the ARB’s goal of increasing the flow of renewable transportation fuel in 
California.  


It is understood that any regulatory changes at this point would require a new 15-day 
comment period which could also be detrimental to the LCFS program as a whole. For this 
reason, CARB has agreed to explore the best method to eliminate the restriction on sale of 
credits generated under temporary or default pathways - including potentially the issuance 
of an advisory opinion to clarify the language in the Re-Adoption and allow for the 
monetization of credits under both the temporary and provisional pathways.  


3.   § 95488(a)(3): Re-Certification of Pathways approved under old LCFS Rule 


Under the Re-Adoption, all existing grandfathered pathways as well as any new pathways 
will have to be re-certified in 2016 under either a Tier 1 or Tier 2 pathway using the GREET 
2.0 model.  Tier 1 pathways apply to all conventionally-produced alternative fuels which 
includes biomethane sourced from landfills.  In order to re-certify a pathway that was 
approved under the previous LCFS rule, CE will have to make a request to the ARB via the 
new online LRT registration system.  The ARB will then automatically re-certify each 
requested pathway under a new Tier 1 pathway and assign a new CI. Applications for re-
certification will be processed in batches following a predetermined priority order: 


1. Ethanol 
2. Biodiesel 
3. Renewable Diesel 
4. CNG 
5. LNG 


Once a pathway has been re-certified and given a new CI, the previous pathway and CI will 
be deactivated.  The ARB will re-certify each grandfathered pathway before 12/31/2016 
which will prevent any lapse in credit generation.  


With respect to Clean Energy’s biomethane pathways, MDU is in a unique position.  Because 
the MDU facility is located at an unregulated landfill, CE must apply for a Tier 2 pathway in 
order to quantify and realize the complete value of the voluntary methane capture and 
destruction that occurs at the site.  Based on our meeting, it is our understanding that 
MDU’s filed Method 2 application will be approved by the ARB before the end of 2015, and 
MDU will be able to generate and sell credits under this pathway while the Tier 2 pathway is 
pending.  CE will apply for a new pathway under Tier 2 for MDU as soon as possible which 
will also be certified before the end of 2016.  


4. § 95486(a)(2): No Retroactive or Incremental Credit Generation 
 







The Re-Adoption appears not to allow for any retroactive credit generation for any quarter 
in which the reporting deadline has already passed.  The only exception to this rule applies 
to the initial generation of provisional credits from facilities that have been operating for 
less than two years.  Once the provisional pathway is approved, the ARB will allow a facility 
to generate provisional credits for the quarter in which the approval takes place and one 
previous quarter (assuming the application was complete during that previous quarter).  It is 
noted that the provisional CI is subject to change as the ARB receives more operational data.  
However, once the pathway is fully certified the credit generator will not be able to 
automatically generate “incremental” additional credits if the final CI is lower than the 
provisional CI – although they may be able to file a petition to do so.  If the final CI is higher 
than the provisional CI, the ARB will automatically retire the excess credits generated.   
 
The temporary pathways are meant to allow obligated parties that have facilities with more 
than two years of operating history to generate credits while the ARB processes their 
applications and provides full certification.  However, notably for biomethane pathways, the 
temporary pathway CIs are representative of a “worst case” operating scenario resulting in 
exceedingly high CI values that are not an accurate representation of CE’s actual pathways.  
In fact, the temporary fuel pathway CIs for biomethane CNG and LNG increased 
approximately 10%-15% in the newest version of the Re-Adoption.  As we understand it, 
there is no allowance or mechanism in the rule for retroactive incremental credit generation 
based on the delta between the certified CI and the temporary pathway.  We believe that 
producers should be able to retroactively claim these credits.  Due to the large difference 
between CE’s certified pathway CIs and the temporary pathway CIs, the ARB should allow 
for at least two quarters of retroactive incremental credit generation – automatically - in 
order to accurately compensate obligated parties for their true reduction in carbon. 
 
CE also has serious concerns regarding retroactivity as applied the regulation prior to re-
adoption and effectiveness of the new regulation.  The idea of retroactive incremental credit 
generation has been openly discussed by CE and the ARB under the old LCFS rule.  During 
the November 2014 LCFS workshop, the issue of retroactive credit generation was openly 
discussed in the context of the delayed approval of LCFS pathways due to the re-adoption 
process. The slide specifically stated:  


No retroactive credits except for specific provisions: 
• Fuel Pathway Application 
• Physical Transport Mode 


 
It was also discussed during this workshop and with ARB staff that up to two quarters of 
retroactivity was possible and that LCFS pathway applicants would apply for retroactivity at 
the time of final application approval.  The application needed to justify that the delays in 
the pathway being approved were due to ARB and staff and not the applicant. 
 







As such, CE has requested the ability to generate incremental credits for all newly posted 
pathways based on the delta between the actual CI in the posted pathway and the default 
number that CE used to generate credits while its pathway applications were pending with 
the ARB.  To our surprise, our request to generate these incremental credits has been 
denied.  CE urges the ARB to re-examine this request and approve retroactive incremental 
credit generation.  The retroactivity should be limited to the two quarters prior to the 
quarter in which the pathway was certified.  Since the credit generator can already use the 
new CI to generate credits for the quarter in which the pathway was certified (credits are 
generated in the two months following the quarter end) the ARB needs to define the two 
quarters of retroactivity as the two quarters prior to approval.  
 
CE would be able to generate an additional 65,229 LCFS credits if it was allowed to generate 
incremental credits as described above - across six different facilities. At current credit 
pricing ($32/Credit) this equates to approximately $2.1MM in additional credit revenue that 
the producers are anticipating.  There is no sound policy reason to deny the generation of 
these credits given that the fuel was delivered at the certified CI and achieved the 
reductions reflected. 
 


5. § 95488(e): Evidence of Fuel Transport Mode (Physical Pathway Description) 
 
Each pathway application must include a description of the physical pathway used to 
transport the fuel for end use to CA. Transactions for fuels in which a physical pathway 
demonstration application has yet to be approved must be reported using the transport 
code PHY10 in the LRT. According to the Re-Adoption:  
 
“A regulated party may not generate credits pursuant to section 95486 unless it has 
demonstrated to the Executive Officer that a fuel transport mode exists for each of the 
transportation fuels for which it is responsible under the LCFS regulation, and that each fuel 
transport mode has been approved by the Executive Officer pursuant to this section.” 


CE has approximately 14 fuel pathways either certified or pending with the ARB.  Each of 
these pathways needs a filed and approved physical pathway demonstration.  CE was 
previously told by the ARB to keep the physical pathway application separate from the 
Method 2B application and to submit only one physical pathway application at a time.  CE 
submitted the physical pathway for the Pinnacle LNG pathway (LNG020) over seven months 
ago and the ARB has yet to issue an approval.  CE has demonstrated the physical 
connectivity between the point of production to final consumption along with providing all 
contracts, production reports, transaction confirmations, and bills of lading.  This has 
created a concern about the timing of approvals and the ability to generate credits following 
the Re-Adoption.  This first physical pathway approval needs to serve as a template for all 
subsequent physical pathways to ensure much quicker approval timeframes.  CE will submit 







all remaining physical pathway applications by Q3 2015, and it is our understanding all will 
be approved by the ARB before year end. 


Although the Re-Adoption states that LCFS credits cannot be generated without approved 
physical pathway applications, the ARB reassured CE that the delay in approvals will not 
prevent credit generation under the Re-Adoption.  Furthermore, the ARB committed to 
reviewing the application process as a whole in an effort to streamline approvals.  


We appreciate your review of these topics and please inform us if there has been any misunderstanding 
conveyed in this memo.  








